# Continuous Household Survey 2022/23 QUESTIONNAIRE





# CONTENT IN BLUE FONT ASKED IN ODD VERSION CONTENT IN RED FONT ASKED IN EVEN VERSION

Contents		Page
Administration		
Household So	<u>chedule</u>	
	Household Information	4
	Accommodation, Tenure & Home Heating	7
	Household Internet Access & Car Access	12
	Domestic Tourism: Overnight Trips	13
	Children Play Facilities/Travel to School	18
Individual Sch	<u>nedule</u>	
	Flights	23
	Sports Participation	25
	Use of Public Library Services	25
	Use of Museum Services	26
	Participation in Arts Activities & Events/Volunteering	27
	Use of PRONI/Heritage/Irish-Ulster Scots/Gift cards	27
	Environment	30
	Wellbeing/Housing Satisfaction	32
	Education & UNCRC	36
	Health/Smoking & Drinking Alcohol	37
	Mobile Phone/Individual Internet Access & Usage	38
	Employment	40
	Accidents and Illness at Work	41
	Road Safety/Graduated Driving Licence	42
	Walking & Cycling	44
	Public Transport & Journey Planning	47
	eCar Ownership	49
	Religion, Sexual & Gender ID, National Identity & Dependents	51
	Benefits	53
	PCOS	54

### **ADMINISTRATION**

[SERNO] Serial Number

[HHNO] Household Number

[INTNUM] Interviewer Number

[Calls] Total Number of Calls made at the address

[Message] Interviewers Reminder

[HStatus] Current Interview Status

- 0. No work done yet
- 1. Calls made but no contact
- 2. Contact made, no work done yet on questionnaire
- 3. Interview started/Any interviewing done
- 4. Other no interviewing required (e.g. ineligible, refusal, reallocations)

### [RespHH] Can you interview at this household?

INTERVIEWER: If you need to reallocate an address once fieldwork has started please select reallocate.

- 1. Yes
- 2. No
- 3. Reallocate

### [WhyReall] Why are you reallocating this address?

- 1. Known to me
- 2. Emergency situation
- 3. Withdrawn by Area Manager
- 4. I want it back in a few months

[Reall] Reallocate to myself or to other?

- 1. Myself
- 2. Other

### HOUSEHOLD INFORMATION

[Numpers] I would like to begin by asking you how many people live in your household, that is, whose main residence this is and who share cooking facilities, and share either a living room, sitting room or dining area with you?

INTERVIEWER: YOU ARE GOING TO FILL IN THE HOUSEHOLD GRID. START WITH THE HRP, THEN LIST ALL OTHER PEOPLE (ADULTS AND CHILDREN) IN THE HOUSEHOLD BEGINNING WITH THE ELDEST PERSON.

In whose name is the accommodation owned or rented?

INTERVIEWER: IF THERE IS MORE THAN 1 PERSON CONTINUE READING Well, as there is more than one person can I ask who has the highest income.

INTERVIEWER: IF INCOMES ARE THE SAME CONTINUE READING In that case I need to know who is the eldest? Who is the next eldest person in the household?

INTERVIEWER: ENTER A NUMBER BETWEEN 1 AND 12

[Name] Can I check the names and ages of the (n) people who live in this household? INTERVIEWER: STARTING WITH THE HRP LIST THE MEMBERS OF THE HOUSEHOLD OLDEST TO YOUNGEST Enter Pers1 Name.

[Age] What is Pers1 age?

[Sex] What is XXXX's sex?

INTERVIEWER: BY SEX WE ARE REFFERRING TO THEIR CURRENT SEX. THERE IS A QUESTION IN THE INDIVIDUAL SCHEDULE REGARDING GENDER IDENTITY

- 1. Male
- 2. Female

[MarStt] What is XXXX's marital status? Is it...

- 1. Single, that is, never married and never registered in a civil partnership
- 2. Married
- 3. In a registered civil partnership
- 4. Separated but, still legally married
- 5. Divorced

- 6. Widowed
- 7. Separated, but still legally in a civil partnership
- 8. Formerly in a civil partnership which is now legally dissolved
- 9. Surviving partner from a civil partnership

If Numpers>1, Age>15 and Marstt not equal to 2 or 3

[LivTog] May I just check, (are you) is XXXX currently living with someone in this household as a couple?

- 1. Yes opposite sex couple
- 2. Yes same sex couple
- 3. No

### **[ETHNIC]** What is XXXX's ethnic group?

- 1. White
- 2. Irish Traveller
- 3. White and Black Caribbean
- 4. White and Black African
- 5. White and Asian
- 6. Any other mixed/multiple ethnic background
- 7. Indian
- 8. Pakistani

- 9. Bangladeshi
- 10. Chinese
- 11. Other Asian background
- 12. African
- 13. Caribbean
- 14. Other Black/African/Caribbean background
- 15. Arab
- 16. Any other ethnic group

### [Birth] What is XXXX's country of birth?

- 1. Northern Ireland
- 2. Republic of Ireland
- 3. England
- 4. Scotland
- 5. Wales
- 6. Outside the UK

→[Birtho]

[Birtho] Please specify the country.

### [Birthcod1] Please select Destination = [Birtho] from the drop down list.

- 1. Northern Ireland
- 2. Republic of Ireland
- 3. England
- 4. Scotland
- 5. Wales
- 6. Channel Islands / Isle of Man
- 7. EU Countries (Poland, Lithuania, Germany, Slovakia, Latvia, Portugal, Romania, Hungary, France, Spain, Czech Republic, Bulgaria, Italy, Holland, Malta, Belgium, Sweden, Greece, Gibraltar, Austria, Denmark, Estonia, Finland, Canary Islands, Slovenia, Luxembourg)
- 8. Non EU countries N and W (Switzerland, Norway, Iceland)
- 9. Non EU countries S and E (Turkey, Russia, Cyprus, Ukraine, Belarus, Moldova, Albania, Kosovo, Croatia, Serbia, Macedonia, Bosnia and Herz)
- 10. North Africa (Egypt, Sudan, Algeria, Morocco, Libya, Tunisia)
- 11. Central and Western Africa (Nigeria, Ghana, Guinea-Bissau, Angola, Cameroon, Ivory Coast, Gambia, Sierra Leone, Cape Verde, Congo, Liberia, Sao Tome, St Helena)
- 12. South and Eastern Africa (South Africa, Zimbabwe, Kenya, Zambia, Malawi, Somalia, Mauritius, Uganda, Tanzania, Botswana, Mozambique, Ethiopia, Eritrea, Seychelles, Swaziland, Lesotho)
- 13. Middle East (Iran, Saudi Arabia, Iraq, Israel, UAE, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Yemen, Syria, Occupied Palestinian Territories, Bahrain, Oman)
- 14. Eastern Asia (China, Hong Kong, Japan, South Korea, Taiwan, Macao)
- 15. Southern Asia (India, Pakistan, Bangladesh, Sri Lanka, Nepal, Afghanistan)
- 16. South East Asia (Philippines, East Timor, Malaysia, Thailand, Singapore, Vietnam, Indonesia, Brunei, Burma, Cambodia)
- 17. Central Asia (Kazakhstan)
- 18. Canada
- 19. Caribbean (Jamaica, Trinidad and Tobago, Cuba, St Vincent and Grenadines, St Lucia, Barbados)",
- 20. USA
- 21. Other North America (Bermuda)

- 22. Central America (Mexico, Guatemala, Belize, Panama, Honduras)
- 23. South America (Brazil, Peru, Colombia, Argentina, Chile, Guyana, Venezuela, Ecuador, Falkland Islands, Bolivia)
- 24. Australia
- 25. New Zealand
- 26. Other Antarctica and Oceania (Fiji)

### IF [Birthcod1] = 7 then:

[Birthcod2] and select Destination = [Birtho] from the list below.

- 1. Northern Ireland
- 2. Republic of Ireland
- 3. Rest of UK
- 4. EU 12 Countries (Belgium, Denmark, France, Germany, Greece, Italy, Luxembourg, Holland, Portugal, Spain)
- 5. EU 15 Countries (Austria, Finland, Sweden)
- 6. Other

[HowRel] [R(1)-R(16)] How are members of this house related to each other? How is Person2 related to Person 1......

1. spouse 11. parent-in-law

2. cohabiting partner 12. brother or sister (incl. adopted)

3. son/daughter (incl. adopted)13. step-brother/sister4. step-son/daughter14. foster brother/sister

5. foster child 15. brother/sister-in-law

6. son-in-law/daughter-in-law
7. parent
8. step-parent
9. guardian
10. grand-child
11. grand-parent
12. other relation
13. other non-relative
14. foster parent
15. other non-relative
16. grand-child
17. grand-parent
18. other relation
19. other non-relative
20. civil partner

### [WhoGrid]

INTERVIEWER: Please enter the person number of the adult who is answering the household questions

### **ACCOMODATION, TENURE & HOME HEATING**

### [ACCOMMOD] What type of accommodation is this?

- 1. Whole house detached
- 2. Whole bungalow detached
- 3. Whole house/bungalow semi-detached
- 4. Terraced house or terraced bungalow
- 5. Purpose-built flat or maisonette

- 6. Part of house/converted flat or maisonette in house
- 7. Rooms in flat/maisonette or house
- 8. Dwelling with business premises
- 9. Rural cottage
- 10. Other (specify)?  $\rightarrow$  [ACCOMOTH]

### [ACCOMOTH] Please specify

**[LONG]** How long have you lived at this address?

INTERVIEWER: QUESTION RELATES TO ADDRESS RATHER THAN PLACE/TOWN

- 1. Less than 6 months
- 2. 6 months but less than 12 months
- 3. 12 months but less than 2 years
- 4. 2 years but less than 3 years
- 5. 3 years but less than 5 years
- 6. 5 years but less than 10 years
- 7. 10 years or more

[HOUSTEN] In which of these ways do you occupy this accommodation? RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Own it outright
- 2. Buying it with the help of a mortgage or loan
- 3. Pay part rent and part mortgage (co-ownership)
- 4. Rented from Housing Executive

- 5. Rented from a housing association
- 6. Rented privately
- 7. Live here rent free
- 8. Squatting?

**[HEAT]** Due to the environmental impacts which can result from using different types of fuels, there is considerable interest in what fuels people in Northern Ireland use to heat their homes. I would like to ask you some questions about your heating and use of fuel.

Even if you don't actually use it, what is the primary method of heating in your home..

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

INTERVIEWER NOTE: PRIMARY METHOD REFERS TO THE MOST OFTEN USED METHOD OF HEATING THE HOME

1. Gas Central Heating (mains gas only)

⇒ [HEATsec]

2. Oil Central Heating
⇒ [HEATsec]
⇒ [HEATsec]

3. Electric - Electric storage (e.g. Economy 7)
⇒ [HEATsec]

4. Electric - Other (includes Electric fire/heater/Dimplex radiators)
⇒ [HEATsec]

5. Open/Closed Fire or stove (with or without back boiler)
⇒ [FUEL1]

6. Other

7. None?
⇒ [INSUL1]

[HEAText] Which of the other methods of heating do you use..

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

- 1. Liquid Petroleum Gas (LPG)
- 2. Biomass (wood pellets)
- 3. Air Source Heat Pump
- 4. Ground Source Heat Pump
- 5. Other? (Please specify)

→ [HEATextOTH]

### [HEATextOTH] Please specify other primary method of heating home

*If HEAT=5* 

**[FUEL1]** Could you please tell me which of the following solid fuels you burn..

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

**CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. Ordinary household coal (i.e. smoky)
- 2. Smokeless coal (i.e. low smoke)
- 3. Peat briquettes
- 4. Peat (sod peat or turf)
- 5. Wood (logs fully seasoned/dry)
- 6. Wood (logs unseasoned/wet)
- 7. Other wood products
- 8. Other (Please specify)?

 $\rightarrow$  [FUEL1oth]

**[FUEL10th]** Please specify the other type of solid fuel you burn.

*If FUEL1 = more than one response* 

[RANK1FUEL] And could you please tell me which of the following solid fuels you burn most often..

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

- 1. Ordinary household coal (i.e. smoky)
- 2. Smokeless coal (i.e. low smoke)
- 3. Peat briquettes
- 4. Peat (sod peat or turf)
- 5. Wood (logs fully seasoned/dry)
- 6. Wood (logs unseasoned/wet)
- 7. Other wood products
- 8. Other (Please specify)?

 $\rightarrow$  [RANK1oth]

[RANK1oth] Please specify the other type of solid fuel you burn most often

*If HEAT=5* 

**[HEATOFT]** When you burn sold fuel as your primary method of heating, may I ask how often you do this. RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Daily
- 2. Evenings only
- 3. Weekends only
- 4. Winter months
- 5. Special occasions only e.g. Christmas
- 6. Other? (Please specify)

→ [HEATOFToth]

[HEATOFToth] Please specify how often

### [HEATsec] Do you use more than one method of heating?

1. Yes  $\rightarrow$  [HEAT2] 2. No  $\rightarrow$  [INSUL1]

[HEAT2] What is the secondary method of heating in your home...

**RUNNNING PROMPT** 

- 1. Gas Central Heating (mains gas only)
- 2. Oil Central Heating
- 3. Electric Electric storage (e.g. Economy 7)
- 4. Electric Other (includes Electric fire/heater/Dimplex radiators)
- 5. Open / Closed Fire or stove (with or without back boiler) → [FUEL2]
  6. Other → [HEAT2ext]
- 7. None?

[HEAT2ext] Which of the other methods of heating do you use..

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

- 1. Liquid Petroleum Gas (LPG)
- 2. Biomass (wood pellets)
- 3. Air Source Heat Pump
- 4. Ground Source Heat Pump
- 5. Other? (Please specify)

[HEAT2extOTH] Please specify other secondary method of heating home

If HEAT2=5

**[FUEL2]** Could you please tell me which of the following solid fuels you burn..

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

**CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. Ordinary household coal (i.e. smoky)
- 2. Smokeless coal (i.e. low smoke)
- 3. Peat briquettes
- 4. Peat (sod peat or turf)
- 5. Wood (logs fully seasoned/dry)
- 6. Wood (logs unseasoned/wet)
- 7. Other wood products
- 8. Other (Please specify)?

→ [FUEL2oth]

→ [HEAT2extOTH]

[FUEL2oth] Please specify the other type of solid fuel you burn.

*If FUEL2= more than one response* 

[RANK2FUEL] And could you please tell me which of the following solid fuels you burn most often..

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

- 1. Ordinary household coal (i.e. smoky)
- 2. Smokeless coal (i.e. low smoke)
- 3. Peat briquettes
- 4. Peat (sod peat or turf)
- 5. Wood (logs fully seasoned/dry)
- 6. Wood (logs unseasoned/wet)
- 7. Other wood products
- 8. Other (Please specify)?

 $\rightarrow$  [RANK2oth]

[RANK2oth] Please specify the other type of solid fuel you burn most often

If HEAT2=5

**[HEATOFT2]** When you burn sold fuel as your secondary method of heating, may I ask how often you do this . . .

### **RUNNING PROMPT**

- 1. Daily
- 2. Evenings only
- 3. Weekends only
- 4. Winter months
- 5. Special occasions only e.g. Christmas
- 6. Other? (Please specify)

→ [HEATOFT2oth]

[HEATOFT2oth] Please specify how often

If HEAT or HEAT2 = 2

**[HOUSOIL]** When you need to order oil, do you ever shop around i.e. check oil prices with more than one oil company so you can order the cheapest option?

- 1. Yes  $\rightarrow$  [INSUL]
- 2. No

[HOUSOILno] Are there any particular reasons why you do not? CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. There isn't much difference in prices between companies
- 2. I like to use my local supplier as they are reliable
- 3. I can't be bothered / too much hassle
- 4. I don't have time
- 5. It's too complicated and I am unsure how to do this
- 6. I didn't know that I could shop around
- 7. Other- please specify

→ [HOUSOILOTH]

8. None

[HOUSOILOTH] Please specify other reason for not checking oil prices

[INSUL1] What form(s) of insulation are in your house..
RUNNING PROMPT
CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Some windows double glazed
- 2. All windows double glazed
- 3. Wall insulation (cavity or solid)
- 4. Loft insulation
- 5. Other (please specify) → [INSULoth]
- 6. None?

[INSULoth] Please specify other form of insulation

[INTRM] I would like to ask you about all the rooms you have in this accommodation.

[ROOMS] COMPUTED FROM BEDROOM + KITCHEN + LIVING + UTILITY

[BEDROOM] How many bedrooms do you have in this accommodation?
INTERVIEWER: INCLUDE ONLY ROOMS THAT WERE INTENDED TO BE USED AS BEDROOMS WHEN THE PROPERTY WAS BUILT, OR THAT HAVE BEEN PERMANENTLY CONVERTED FOR USE AS A BEDROOM EG THROUGH A LOFT CONVERSION. INCLUDE ALL ROOMS THAT WERE INTENDED TO BE USED AS A BEDROOM EVEN IF THEY ARE CURRENTLY NOT BEING USED AS A BEDROOM. INCLUDE BEDSITS. EXCLUDE LIVING ROOMS OR DINING ROOMS THAT ARE BEING USED FOR SLEEPING.

**[KITCHEN]** How many kitchens do you have in this accommodation? INTERVIEWER: NARROWEST SIDE MUST BE AT LEAST SIX AND A HALF FEET FROM WALL TO WALL.

[LIVING] How many living rooms do you have?

INTERVIEWER: INCLUDE DINING ROOMS AND INCLUDE SUN LOUNGES /CONSERVATORIES THAT ARE USED ALL YEAR ROUND. EXCLUDE HALLS, LANDINGS, AND ALCOVES AND ROOMS USED SOLELY FOR BUSINESS. EXCLUDE

BEDSITS AND COMMUNAL LOUNGES IN SHELTERED ACCOMMODATION.

**[UTILITY]** How many utility rooms and other rooms do you have? INTERVIEWER: EXCLUDE BATHROOMS, TOILETS AND SMALL KITCHENS.

### **HOUSEHOLD INTERNET ACCESS & CAR ACCESS**

[INET2] I am now going to ask a couple of questions about internet access and access to a car.

Does your household have access to the internet at home?

- 1. Yes
- 2. No  $\rightarrow$  [LANDLINE]

[ACCESS] How does your household access the internet from home? Is it a . . . . RUNNING PROMPT
SELECT ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Mobile phone
- 2. Tablet
- 3. Laptop/computer
- 4. TV
- 5. Games console
- 6. or other?  $\rightarrow$  [NETOTHER]

[NETOTHER] Please specify.

[ACCESS2] Does your household access the internet with a broadband connection? INTERVIEWER: BROADBAND IS A SERVICE THAT GIVES YOU AN 'ALWAYS ON' CONNECTION.

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

**[LANDLINE]** Do you have a fixed telephone line (landline) in your home? INTERVIEWER: THIS SHOULD BE AN ACTIVE TELEPHONE NUMBER

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

**[OWNCAR]** Is there a car or van normally available for use by you or any member of your household? INTERVIEWER: INCLUDE ANY PROVIDED BY EMPLOYERS IF NORMALLY AVAILABLE FOR PRIVATE USE. EXCLUDE ANY USED SOLELY FOR THE CARRIAGE OF GOODS.

- 1. Yes  $\rightarrow$  [MANYCARS]
- 2. No

[MANYCARS] How many cars/vans are available?

INTERVIEWER: INCLUDE ANY PROVIDED BY EMPLOYERS IF NORMALLY AVAILABLE FOR PRIVATE USE. EXCLUDE ANY USED SOLELY FOR THE CARRIAGE OF GOODS.

### **DOMESTIC TOURISM – OVERNIGHT TRIPS**

### [NITB1]

I am now going to ask some questions about overnight trips. Have you or anyone in your household returned from any trips in the last four weeks that involved staying away from home for one night or more? DATES ARE FROM \*\*/\*\*/\*\*\*\* TO \*\*/\*\*/\*\*\*\*

INTERVIEWER: EXCLUDE CHILDREN AT BOARDING SCHOOL AND OVERNIGHT TRIPS BY CHILDREN TO DIVORCED/SEPARATED PARENT. BELOW IS A LIST OF MEMBERS OF HOUSEHOLD. PLEASE READ OUT THE LIST OF HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AND CHECK WITH RESPONDENT IF ANYONE ON THE LIST HAS TAKEN AN OVERNIGHT TRIP IN THE LAST 8 WEEKS.

1. Yes

2. No  $\rightarrow$  [NOTRIPSa/b]

**[NUMoTRIP]** How many of these overnight trips have members of your household taken? DATES ARE FROM \*\*/\*\*/\*\*\*\* TO \*\*/\*\*/\*\*\*\*

1.....12

**[PERSON]** Now thinking about overnight trip XX, who went on this overnight trip? INTERVIEWER: EXCLUDE CHILDREN AT BOARDING SCHOOL AND OVERNIGHT TRIPS BY CHILDREN TO A DIVORCED/SEPARATED PARENT.

- 1. Person 1
- 2. Person 2
- 3. Person 3
- 4. Person 4

. . .

17. Other persons from outside the household  $\rightarrow$  [PERSOTH]

**[PERSOTH]** How many people from outside this household went on the overnight trip? 1..199

**[PERSU16]** And how many of these people from outside the household were children under the age of 16?

INTERVIEWER: THIS SHOULD NOT BE GREATER THAN = [PERSOTH] 0..199

[COUNTR] Which country was this overnight trip to?

INTERVIEWER: FOR MULTI COUNTRY OVERNIGHT TRIPS WHICH ARE NOT CRUISES OR INTER RAIL TRIPS PLEASE ENTER THE COUNTRY THE RESPONDENT SPENDS MOST TIME IN ON THE TRIP

1. Northern Ireland → [NITB7ni] → [NITB6] 2. Republic of Ireland 3. England → [NITB6] 4. Scotland → [NITB6] 5. Wales → [NITB6] 6. Other part of the UK e.g. Channel Islands → [NITB6]  $\rightarrow$  [NILK] 7. Other part of the world → [NITB6] 8. Multi country CRUISE trip 9. Multi country INTER-RAIL → [NITB6]

[NILK] Which country was this trip to?

TYPE THE FIRST 3 LETTERS OF THE PLACE TO BRING UP A LIST OF PLACES

IF LOCATION NOT AVAILABLE IN LIST, PROBE FOR NEAREST LOCATION

[NITB7ni] Where did you/they stay in Northern Ireland? TYPE THE FIRST 3 LETTERS OF THE PLACE TO BRING UP A LIST OF PLACES IF LOCATION NOT AVAILABLE IN LIST, PROBE FOR NEAREST LOCATION

[NITB7roi] Where did you/they stay in Republic Ireland?

TYPE THE FIRST 3 LETTERS OF THE PLACE TO BRING UP A LIST OF PLACES

IF LOCATION NOT AVAILABLE IN LIST, PROBE FOR NEAREST LOCATION

[NITB7sco] Where did you/they stay in Scotland?

TYPE THE FIRST 3 LETTERS OF THE PLACE TO BRING UP A LIST OF PLACES

IF LOCATION NOT AVAILABLE IN LIST, PROBE FOR NEAREST LOCATION

[NITB7eng] Where did you stay in England? TYPE THE FIRST 3 LETTERS OF THE PLACE TO BRING UP A LIST OF PLACES IF LOCATION NOT AVAILABLE IN LIST, PROBE FOR NEAREST LOCATION

**[CRUISE]** What was the destination of the cruise? INTERVIEWER: WAIT FOR RESPONSE AND CHOOSE ANSWER FROM FOLLOWING LIST:

- 1. Mediterranean Cruise
- 2. Asia, Orient Cruise
- 3. The Americas Cruise
- 4. Australasia Cruise
- 5. Baltic Cruise
- 6. British Isles Cruise
- 7. Caribbean Cruise
- 8. Europe Cruise
- 9. Fjords and Iceland Cruise
- 10. Iberia and Canary Island Cruise
- 11. Middle East and Africa Cruise
- 12. Other Cruise → [CRUOTH]

**[CRUOTH]** Please specify the other destination of the cruise?

[NITB6] Could you tell me the total nights you/they stayed overnight during this trip? 1..364

[Retdte1] On what date did you/they return from this overnight trip? INTERVIEWER: DATE MUST LIE BETWEEN XX/XX/XXXX AND XX/XX/XXXX

[NITB4a] What was the main reason for this overnight trip?

- 1. Holiday/pleasure/leisure
- 2. Visiting friends or relatives
- 3. Professional/business
- 4. Other reason (pilgrimage, health treatment, other)

### [NITB7e] Type of destination?

CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. city
- 2. seaside
- 3. countryside (including lakeside, river, etc)
- 4. Cruise ship
- 5. Mountains (highlands, hills, etc)
- 6. Other

[NITB8a] What type of accommodation did you/they stay in during the overnight trip? INTERVIEWER: IF STAYED AT MORE THAN ONE ACCOMMODATION TYPE PROBE FOR ACCOMMODATION STAYED AT LONGEST

- 1. Hotel/motel
- 2. Guest House /Bed & Breakfast
- 3. Caravan Park / Camping / Campsite (e.g. touring/static caravan/tent/glamping etc.)
- 4. Rented accommodation such as house, villa, apartment; rented room(s) in a dwelling
- 5. Other rented accommodation e.g. health establishments, youth hostel, marinas
- 6. Own holiday home/second home
- 7. Accommodation provided free of charge by relatives or friends
- 8. Other non-rented accommodation

[NITB13a] What form of transport did you/they use on the longest part of the journey from home to destination? By longest I mean distance not time.

- 1. Air (flight services, scheduled or charted, or other air services)
- 2. Waterway (passenger lines and ferries, cruises, pleasure boat, rented vessel etc.)
- 3. Railway
- 4. Bus or coach (scheduled or non-scheduled)
- 5. Motor vehicle (private or rented)
- 6. Bicycle / on foot
- 7. Other (please specify)

→ [NITB13ao]

### [NITB13ao] Please specify

(IF OVERNIGHT IN NORTHERN IRELAND)

[NIACT1] Did you participate in any of the following sporting related activities during your trip? CODE ALL THAT APPLY.

- 1. Went hiking or walking
- 2. Undertook outdoor leisure activities (such as cycling, golf, fishing etc.)
- 3. Took part in adventure activities (mountain biking, climbing, archery, horse riding)
- 4. Took part in water sports (such as kayaking, surfing, coasteering etc.)
- Took part in sports (running, ball sports) (not water sports / adventure activities)
- 6. Other  $\rightarrow$  [NIACT1oth]
- 7. None

[NIACT10th] Please state what other activities you participated in.

### (IF OVERNIGHT IN NORTHERN IRELAND)

### [NIACT2]

Did you participate in any of the following activities during your trip...

**CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

**HELP BOX:** 

- 1 (historic building or site, museum, e.g. Giants Causeway, Titanic Belfast etc.)
- 4 (such as public events, concerts, fairs etc.)
- 8 (e.g. food tour, drink tour, bus tour, walking tour and other tours)
- 9 (e.g. Tours, visiting filming locations, exhibitions, tapestry, doors)
- 1. Went to a visitor attraction
- 2. Visited a beach or coastline area
- 3. Went out for a meal to a restaurant or cafe
- 4. Attended an event or festival
- 5. Visited a forest, park or gardens
- 6. Went on a shopping trip
- 7. Went on a night out to a bar, pub and/or club
- 8. Went on a guided tour
- 9. Game of Thrones related/inspired activities
- 10. Watched a live sporting event (not on TV)
- 11. Other  $\rightarrow$  [NIACT2oth]
- 12. None?

[NIACT2oth] Please state what other activities you participated in.

[NITB14xx] What was the total cost of this overnight trip?

INTERVIEWER: PLEASE ANSWER IN £ STERLING

(IF NITB4a = 3. PROFESSIONAL OR BUSINESS TRIP)

**[NIBUS]** Are you aware of the actual costs paid by your employer as part of this professional/business trip?

1. Yes

2. No  $\rightarrow$  [NIBUSb]

3. Not applicable (employer didn't pay for any part of trip)

**[NIBUSb]** What costs (if any) did your employer cover on this professional/business trip . . . RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Flights/boats/trains/transfers/car/bus Transport
- 2. Accommodation
- 3. Food drink
- 4. Tickets to events
- 5. Any other items?
- 6. None of these

(IF NITB4a = 1. HOLIDAY/PLEASURE/LEISURE OR 2. VISITING FRIENDS OR RELATIVES)

[NIPACK] Was part (or all) of the expenditure for the trip paid to a travel agency or tour operator in the context of a package or all-inclusive trip?

1. Yes

2. No → [NITB14b]

[NIPACKa] How much did you pay for the package or all-inclusive trip to the travel agency or tour operator? 0..999997

[NIPACKb] What did this £XXX cover . . . . RUNNING PROMPT

- 1 Transport
- 2. Accommodation
- 3. Food drink
- 4. Tickets to events
- 5. Any other items?

[NITB14b] How much was spent in total on the accommodation? 0..99997

[NITB14c] How much was spent in total on all travel costs during the trip? This refers to all bus/train/air fares, taxis, fuel, car hire etc.: 0..99997

[NITB14f] How much was spent on food and drink during the trip? For example, expenditure in cafes and restaurants, purchasing food at supermarkets for the trip 0..99997

(IF OVERNIGHT IN NI, ROI, ENGLAND, SCOTLAND, WALES, OR OTHER UK)

**[NITB14e]** How much was spent on buying clothes? This refers to clothes purchased specifically beforehand for the trip or on the trip. 0..99997

(IF OVERNIGHT IN NI, ROI, ENGLAND, SCOTLAND, WALES, OR OTHER UK)

[NITB14g] How much was spent on other shopping? 0..99997

(IF OVERNIGHT IN NI, ROI, ENGLAND, SCOTLAND, WALES, OR OTHER UK)

[NITB14h] How much was spent on entertainment? This refers to things like theatre tickets, cinema, admission prices to an event/concert/place of interest (for example W5 or a zoo). 0..99997

[NITB14i] How much was spent on all other items? 0..99997

[NITB14j] So that means that a total cost of £XXX was spent in total for this trip. Does that sound about right?

IF RESPONDENT SAYS NO GO BACK AND CHANGE THE COSTS: (Yes)

[NITB14Z] How many people does the total cost of £XXXX cover

NEED TO FIND OUT IF THE TOTAL COST (£XXX) IS THE COSTS FOR EVERYONE ON THE TRIP OR JUST THE RESPONDENT. THERE WERE XX PEOPLE ON THE TRIP 1..199

[NITB14Zu16] And of those X people (that the costs cover), how many were children aged under 16? 0...97

[NITB14Zo16] And of those X people, how many were children aged over 16? 0...97

### (IF NITB1=NO OR COUNTRY <> NI)

### [NOTRIPSa/b] SHOWCARD 9 (No Trips)

What is the <u>main</u> reason why your household did not take any overnight trips in Northern Ireland in the last 4 weeks..

- 1. Financial reasons (no money available for holiday trips, cannot afford to go on holiday)
- 2. Lack of free time due to family commitments
- 3. Lack of free time due to work or study commitments
- 4. Covid-19 related reasons (having COVID-19, self-isolating, fear of infection)
- 5. Health reasons or reduced mobility
- 6. Prefer to stay at home, no motivation to travel
- 7. Safety
- 8. Recently returned from an overnight trip
- 9. Already planned/booked a trip
- 10. Prefer to take trips outside NI
- 11. Weather is usually poor in NI
- 12. Other? → [NOTRIPSo]

**[NOTRIPSo]** Please specify other reason.

### CHILDREN'S PLAY FACILITIES/TRAVEL TO SCHOOL

(IF CHILDREN AGED 0-18 LIVE IN THE HOUSEHOLD)

**[DEintro]** I would now like to ask some questions about play and leisure facilities in your area. On a scale running from very good to very poor, how would you rate the....
RUNNING PROMPT

### [DE1b]

....overall quality of play and leisure opportunities in your local area for 0 to 4 year olds?

- 1. Very good
- 2. Good
- 3. Fair
- 4. Poor
- 5. Very poor

[DE2b] ..... overall quality of play and leisure opportunities in your local area for 5 to 11 year olds?

- 1. Very good
- 2. Good
- 3. Fair
- 4. Poor
- 5. Very poor

### [DE3b]

....overall quality of play and leisure opportunities in your local area for 12 to 18 year olds?

- 1. Very good
- 2. Good
- 3. Fair
- 4. Poor
- 5. Very poor

[PLAYintro] I now have some questions about play and leisure time.

**[PLAY1]** I am now going to read out a brief statement. Can you please tell me if you agree or disagree with it?

Children and young people have enough opportunity to play/enjoy leisure time.

- 1. Agree → [PLAY3]
- 2. Disagree

**[PLAY2]** What do you think prevents children and young people from having the opportunity to play/enjoy leisure time?

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

**CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. Pressure for educational achievement / homework / part time job
- 2. Lack of appropriate space
- 3. Concerns over safety in outdoor space
- 4. Resistance to children's use of public space
- 5. No suitable clubs / groups
- 6. More time on electronic play / media
- 7. Other  $\rightarrow$  [PLAY2oth]

[PLAY2oth] Please specify other reason

**[PLAY3]** How important do you think play and leisure is to the physical, emotional and educational development of children and young people?

Would it be ...

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

- 1. Very important
- 2. Important
- 3. Slightly important
- 4. Or not important at all?

### [PLAY4]

On a scale of strongly agree through to strongly disagree, can you tell me whether you agree or disagree with the following statement.

Playing with my child is important for both my child's development and for my own attachment / relationship with my child.

- 1. Strongly agree
- 2. Agree
- 3. Neither agree nor disagree
- 4. Disagree
- 5. Strongly disagree

[PLAY5] Are you content to let your child play outside where you live?

- 1. Yes → [PLAY7]
- 2. No

### [PLAY6]

Why are you not content to let you child play outside where you live RUNNING PROMPT CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Lack of appropriate space
- 2. Concern about safety
- 3. Concern they would be seen as a nuisance by others
- 4. Road traffic
- 5. Weather
- 6. Other?  $\rightarrow$  [PLAY6oth]

### [PLAY6oth]

Please specify other reason.

### [PLAY7]

What do you think would help children and young people play outside in your local area RUNNING PROMPT CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Better community tolerance
- 2. Dedicated play and leisure space
- 3. More natural space
- 4. Traffic calming
- 5. Street closure
- 6. Other?  $\rightarrow$  [PLAY7oth]

### [PLAY7oth]

Please specify other reason.

[CINTRO] I would now like to ask some questions about the children in this household.

### (ASKED IF CHILD UNDER 4, IS 11 OR OVER 15)

[C1] Is CHILDX at a primary or post-primary school?

- 1. Primary school
- 2. Post-primary school
- 3. No longer at school
- 4. Not started school

[MODE] Which of the modes of transport listed does CHILD normally use to get to and from school? CODE ALL THAT APPLY

Please consider both journeys and include all modes of transport.

If CHILD walks PART of the way in conjunction with some other form of transport (e.g. walks to or from a bus stop or after being dropped off) only include walking if CHILD has to walk for 10 minutes or more.

1. Walking (all or part of the way)

5. Train

2. Bicycle

6. Taxi

3. Car/van

7. Other

→ [MODEOTH]

4. Bus

### [MODEOTH] Please specify the other mode of transport

If more than one option selected for [MODE]

**[MAIN]** And which of these do you consider is CHILD's main mode of transport to and from school? INTERVIEWER: IF MORE THAN ONE MODE SELECT THE MODE WITH THE LONGEST JOURNEY

- 1. Walking (all or part of the way)
- 2. Bicycle
- 3. Car/van
- 4. Bus
- 5. Train
- 6. Taxi
- 7. Other
- 8. Cannot distinguish equal number of journeys made with different modes (e.g car lift to school 5 days a week, walk home from school 5 days a week) → [MAINB]

### [MAINB] Which modes have equal journeys made?

- 1. Walking (all or part of the way)
- 2. Bicycle
- 3. Car/van
- 4. Bus
- 5. Train
- 6. Taxi
- 7. Other

### ASKED IF WALKING IS MENTIONED AT MODE OF TRANSPORT TO SCHOOL

**[C2]** You mentioned previously that CHILD normally walks either to or from school. Can I just check, is that walking all or part of the way to or from school?

- 1. All of the way
- 2. Part of the way

- [C3] How many days per week does CHILD walk (all or part of the way) to school? 0..5
- [C3a] How many days per week does CHILD walk (all or part of the way) home from school? 0..5
- [C5] How long (in minutes) does CHILD spend in total walking to and from school on a daily basis? 1..180 INSTRUCTION: THIS IS TIME SPENT WALKING TO AND BACK FROM SCHOOL ON ONE TYPICAL SCHOOL DAY

### ASKED IF CYCLING IS MENTIONED AT MODE OF TRANSPORT TO SCHOOL

- [C4] how many days per week does CHILD cycle to school? 0..5
- [C4a] how many days per week does CHILD cycle home from school? 0..5
- [C6] How long (in minutes) does CHILD spend in total cycling to and from school on a daily basis? 1..120

### ASKED ABOUT PERSON IN THE HOUSEHOLD WHO IS ATTENDING SCHOOL

[C7] How far is CHILD 's school (to the nearest whole mile) from your home? 0..90

**[DE6]** On average, how many days per week does CHILD engage in play or leisure activity each week? Play and leisure activity INCLUDES time spent playing with non technology toys e.g. painting/drawing, pretending and using their imagination, playing outdoors, playing at a park or attending a leisure centre or organised play or leisure clubs. Please EXCLUDE activities that focus primarily on the use of technology e.g. PlayStation, Xbox, phone, tablet, computer.

Would it be...

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

1. 1 day a week

2. 2 days a week

3. 3 days a week

4. 4 days a week

- 5. 5 days a week
- 6. 6 days a week
- 7. every day
- 8. or not at all?

**[DE7]** On average, how much time do you spend playing or enjoying leisure time with CHILD on a typical week day? Play and leisure activity INCLUDES time spent playing with non technology toys e.g. painting/drawing, pretending and using their imagination, playing outdoors, playing at a park or attending a leisure centre or organised play or leisure clubs. Please EXCLUDE activities that focus primarily on the use of technology e.g. PlayStation, Xbox, phone, tablet, computer.

- 1. 1 hour or less
- 2. 2 to 3 hours
- 3. 4 to 5 hours
- 4. 6 to 7 hours
- 5. 8 or more hours

**[DE8]** On average, how much time do you spend playing or enjoying leisure time with CHILD on a typical weekend day? Play and leisure activity INCLUDES time spent playing with non technology toys e.g. painting/drawing, pretending and using their imagination, playing outdoors, playing at a park or attending a leisure centre or organised play or leisure clubs. Please EXCLUDE activities that focus primarily on the use of technology e.g. PlayStation, Xbox, phone, tablet, computer.

- 1. 1 hour or less
- 2. 2 to 3 hours
- 3. 4 to 5 hours
- 4. 6 to 7 hours
- 5. 8 or more hours

### INTRODUCTION TO INDIVIDUAL SCHEDULE

### [INTROI]

That's the end of the household section. The next set of questions relate to a variety of topics. Since we all usually differ in our answers to these questions we like to ask them of each person in the household who is aged 16 and over.

### **FLIGHTS**

**[FLYNIROI**] Now thinking about the last 4 weeks, which is since XX/XX/XXXX, how many times have you flown (by airplane) where you departed from an airport in either Northern Ireland or the Republic of Ireland? 0..365

(ASKED IF FLYNIROI > 0)

**[FLYINTRO]** I would now like to ask you a few questions about each flight.

IF PERSON HAS HAD MORE THAN 5 FLIGHTS THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS SHOULD BE ASKED ABOUT THE 5 MOST RECENT FLIGHTS

[AIRPORT] Thinking about flight X, which airport did you depart from?

- 1. Belfast International Airport / Aldergrove
- 2. George Best Belfast City Airport
- 3. City of Derry / Eglinton Airport
- 4. Dublin Airport
- 5. Other → [AIRPORTOTH]

[AIRPORTOTH] Please specify the other airport.

[AIRWHY] Why did you depart from XXXX (on this occasion)? CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Proximity to home
- 2. Choice of route only available from airport
- 3. Cheaper flight
- 4. Travel agent organised / Package holiday
- 5. Work or business booked/organised the flight
- 6. Prefer the airport
- 7. Flight times
- 8. Other → [AIROTH]

[AIROTH] Please specify the other reason for departure from XXXX

# [AIRDEST] What was the country of your final destination? INSTRUCTION: IF PERSON FLEW TO GATWICK (LONDON) AND THEN ON TO MADRID THE FINAL DESTINATION WOULD BE SPAIN

1.	England	11. Germany	
2.	Scotland	12. Greece	
3.	Wales	13. USA	→ [USOTH]
4.	Republic of Ireland	14. Canada	
5.	France	15. Croatia	
6.	Spain (inc. Canary Islands, Majorca etc.)	16. Malta	
7.	Portugal	17. Poland	
8.	Turkey	18. Lithuania	
9.	Holland/Netherlands	19. Australia	
10.	. Italy	20. Other	→ [DESOTH]

### **[DESOTH]** Please specify the other destination.

TYPE THE FIRST 3 LETTERS OF THE COUNTRY TO BRING UP A LIST OF COUNTRIES IF LOCATION NOT AVAILABLE IN LIST, PROBE FOR NEAREST LOCATION THAT IS

**[USOTH]** Could you tell me which state or city in America you travelled to?

### (AIRDEST >1)

**[HEATH]** Did you travel through any other airport(s) to reach your final destination?

1. Yes → [HEATOTH] 2. No → [AIREA]

## **[HEATOTH]** What airport(s) did you travel through? CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Heathrow
- 2. Gatwick
- 3. Other → [HEATHO]

**[HEATHO]** Could you tell me the other airport you travelled through?

### [AIRREA] What was the main reason for this trip?

- 1. Holiday/pleasure/leisure
- 2. Visiting friends or relatives
- 3. Professional/business
- 4. Other reason (pilgrimage/ health treatment, other) → [AIRREAO]

[AIRREAO] Please specify the other reason.

### **SPORTS PARTICIPATION**

**[DfCINT]** The next set of questions are about individuals' experience of Culture, Arts and Sport in Northern Ireland.

**[ANYYRPA]** I would like you to tell me if you have taken part in or played any of the following sports or physical activities during the last 12 months that is since XX/XX/XXXX? Please do not count any teaching, coaching or refereeing you may have done.

RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Football (indoors or outdoors)
- 2. Gaelic games (football, hurling, camogie)
- 3. Racket sports (tennis, badminton, squash)
- 4. Basketball or netball
- 5. Jogging
- 6. Cycling for recreation
- 7. Walking for recreation
- 8. Bowls (indoor or outdoor) or tenpin bowling

- 9. Swimming or diving
- 10. Angling or fishing
- 11. Keep fit/aerobics/yoga/dance exercise/weight training
- 12. Snooker or pool
- 13. Golf or pitch and putt
- 14. Other  $\rightarrow$  [XOTHYPA]
- 15. None?

[XOTHYPA] Please tell me what the other sport(s) were?

[ANYYRPB] I would like you to tell me if you have taken part in or played any of the following sports or physical activities during the last 4 weeks that is since XX/XX/XXXX? Please do not count any teaching, coaching or refereeing you may have done.

RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Football (indoors or outdoors)
- 2. Gaelic games (football, hurling, camogie)
- 3. Racket sports (tennis, badminton, squash)
- 4. Basketball or netball
- 5. Jogging
- 6. Cycling for recreation
- 7. Walking for recreation
- 8. Bowls (indoor or outdoor) or tenpin bowling

- 9. Swimming or diving
- 10. Angling or fishing
- 11. Keep fit/aerobics/yoga/dance exercise/weight training
- 12. Snooker or pool
- 13. Golf or pitch and putt
- 14. Other  $\rightarrow$  [XOTHYPA]
- 15. None?

[XOTHYPB] Please tell me what the other sport(s) were?

### **USE OF PUBLIC LIBRARY SERVICES**

**[LIBMEMBER]** Are you currently a member of a public library in Northern Ireland (that is, do you have a current Libraries NI membership card or number)?

(PUBLIC LIBRARY INCLUDES MOBILE LIBRARIES BUT DOES NOT INCLUDE SCHOOL, COLLEGE, OR UNIVERSITY LIBRARIES)

1. Yes

### 2. No

**[LIBYEAR**] During the last 12 months, have you used the public library service at least once (for example have you been to a public library or mobile library; an event run by Libraries NI online or in a venue other than a library; used the Libraries NI website; downloaded free eBooks/eMagazines/audiobooks from the Overdrive/Libby or BorrowBox app using your library membership)?

(PUBLIC LIBRARY DOES NOT INCLUDE SCHOOL, COLLEGE, OR UNIVERSITY LIBRARIES)

- 1. Yes
- 2. No.

**[LIBOSAT]** Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with public library provision in Northern Ireland? RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Very satisfied
- 2. Fairly satisfied
- 3. Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- 4. Fairly dissatisfied
- 5. Very dissatisfied

### **USE OF MUSEUM SERVICES**

**[MUS12MTH]** Which, if any, of the following museums have you visited in the last 12 months? RUNNING PROMPT CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Ulster Museum, Belfast
- 2. Ulster Folk Museum, Cultra
- 3. Ulster Transport Museum, Cultra
- 4. Ulster American Folk Park, Omagh
- 5. None of these?

**[MUSPEC]** And could you please tell me the name(s) of any other museums, if any, you have been to in Northern Ireland in the last 12 months?

INTERVIEWER: DO NOT PROMPT. WAIT FOR RESPONDENT TO ANSWER AND THEN CHOOSE RELEVANT OPTION(S) BELOW

- 6. Andrew Jackson & US Rangers Centre
- 7. Ardress House
- 8. Armagh County Museum
- 9. Armagh Robinson Library
- 10. Ballycastle Museum
- 11. Ballymoney Museum
- 12. Barn Museum
- 13. Carrickfergus Museum
- 14. Castle Ward
- 15. Coleraine Museum
- 16. Craigavon Museum Services
- 17. Down County Museum
- 18. Downpatrick & Co. Down Railway Museum
- 19. F E McWilliam Gallery and Studio

- 26. Irish Linen Centre & Lisburn Museum
- 27. Limavady Museum
- 28. Linen Hall Library
- 29. Mid Antrim Museum
- 30. Milford House Collection
- 31. Mount Stewart
- 32. Museum at the Mill
- 33. Newry & Mourne Museum
- 34. North Down Museum
- 35. Northern Ireland War Memorial
- 36. Police Museum
- 37. Royal Irish Fusiliers Museum
- 38. Royal Ulster Rifles Museum
- 39. Sentry Hill

- 20. Fermanagh County Museum
- 21. Flame The Gasworks Museum of Ireland
- 22. Florence Court
- 23. Garvagh Museum & Heritage Centre
- 24. Green Lane Museum
- 25. Hezlett House

- 40. Somme Museum
- 41. Springhill
- 42. The Argory
- 43. The Inniskillings Museum
- 44. Tower Museum
- 45. Whitehead Railway Museum
- 46. Some other museum not mentioned
- 47. Can't remember
- 48. None of these

**[SCICENTRE]** Which, if any, of the following science centres have you visited in the last 12 months? RUNNING PROMPT CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. W5
- 2. Armagh Planetarium
- 3. or none?

### **PARTICIPATION IN ARTS ACTIVITES AND EVENTS / VOLUNTEERING**

### [ARTINTRO]

In the last 12 months have you taken part in any of the following activities? RUNNING PROMPT – CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Ballet or any other type of dance (traditional or modern but not keep fit)
- Sang or Played a musical instrument to an audience or rehearsed for a performance (not karaoke)
- Written music/songs (including creating music digitally)
- 4. Rehearsed or performed in a play, a drama, or an opera
- 5. Painting, drawing, printmaking or sculpture
- Took photographs or made films or videos as an artistic activity (not family or holiday snaps/videos)

- 7. Used a computer to create original artworks or animation
- 8. Textile crafts such as embroidery, crocheting or knitting
- 9. Wood crafts such as wood turning, carving or furniture making
- 10. Other crafts such as calligraphy, pottery or jewellery making
- 11. Written any stories, plays or poetry
- 12. None of the above?

[ARTANY] In the last 12 months have you attended any of the following events? RUNNING PROMPT – CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Film at cinema or other venue
- 2. Exhibition or collection of art, photography or sculpture or crafts
- 3. Event connected with books or writing (such as poetry reading or storytelling)
- 4. A circus or carnival
- 5. An arts or community festival

- 6. A play, drama other theatre performance (such as musical or pantomime)
- 7. A live music performance (opera, classical, rock, pop, jazz, folk or world music)
- 8. A live dance performance (ballet, Irish dance performance or other dance event)
- 9. None of the above?

### **[VOLINT]** The following question is about volunteering.

Volunteering is defined as 'the commitment of time and energy, for the benefit of society and the community, the environment, or individuals outside (or in addition to) one's immediate family. It is unpaid and undertaken freely and by choice. It is important that your replies refer only to unpaid work or activities.

**[VOL1]** Thinking about the definition just given, in the past year, that is since XX/XX/XXXX have you carried out any voluntary work or activity. This may include unpaid work in, for example, community development, arts, culture, sport, faith based, education, neighbourliness, youth, environmental, health, direct care and animal welfare.

INTERVIEWER: IF ASKED 'DIRECT CARE' REFERS TO PERSONAL CARE SUCH AS WASHING, DRESSING FOR SOMEONE, EITHER OUTSIDE OR IN ADDITION TO ONE'S IMMEDIATE FAMILY, WHO MAY BE FRAIL OR SICK

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

### **USE OF PRONI / HERITAGE / IRISH-ULSTER SCOTS & GIFT CARDS**

### [PRONI]

In the last 12 months, that is since (XX/XX/XXXX), have you done any of the following? RUNNING PROMPT – CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Visited the Public Record Office of Northern Ireland (PRONI)
- 2. Contacted PRONI by correspondence or email to request information
- 3. Used the PRONI website or engaged with PRONI through social media e.g. Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, YouTube, Flickr
- 4. Attended an online PRONI event, workshop or lecture
- 5. Viewed a PRONI exhibition at another public building e.g. a library, museum or community centre
- 6. Engaged with PRONI in some other way

→ [PRONIOTH]

7. None of these

### [PRONIOTH]

Please tell us about the other ways you have engaged with PRONI

### [HERITAGE]

In the last 12 months have you visited any of these places in Northern Ireland? RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. A city or town with historic character
- 2. A historic building open to the public (non-religious)
- 3. A historic park or garden open to the public
- 4. A place connected with industrial history or historic transport system
- 5. A historic place of worship attended as a visitor (not to worship)
- 6. A monument such as a castle, fort, or ruin
- 7. A site of archaeological interest
- 8. A site connected with sports heritage (not visited for the purposes of watching sport)
- 9. None of these

### [langint]

The next few questions are about the Irish and Ulster-Scots languages.

### [IRIS1]

Firstly some questions about the Irish language...

Can you understand, speak, read or write Irish, to some level?

### **CODE ALL THAT APPLY**

- 1. Understand spoken Irish
- 2. Speak Irish
- 3. Read Irish
- 4. Write Irish
- 5. None of the above

 $\rightarrow$  [SCOT1]

### [IRIS6]

Do you use Irish at home at all, i.e. in conversing with family or housemates?

- 1. Never
- 2. Very occasionally (less often than once a week)
- 3. Occasionally (at least once a week)
- 4. Daily

### [IRIS7]

Do you use Irish socially at all, i.e. in conversing with friends or acquaintances?

- 1. Never
- 2. Very occasionally (less often than once a week)
- 3. Occasionally (at least once a week)
- 4. Daily

### [SCOT1]

Now some questions about the Ulster-Scots language...

Can you understand, speak, read or write Ulster-Scots, to some level?

### **CODE ALL THAT APPLY**

- 1. Understand spoken Ulster-Scots
- 2. Speak Ulster-Scots
- 3. Read Ulster-Scots
- 4. Write Ulster-Scots
- 5. None of the above

→ [SPORTFIN]

### [SCOT6]

Do you use Ulster-Scots at home at all, i.e. in conversing with family or housemates?

- 1. Never
- 2. Very occasionally (less often than once a week)
- 3. Occasionally (at least once a week)
- 4. Daily

### [SCOT7]

Do you use Ulster-Scots socially at all, i.e. in conversing with friends or acquaintances?

- 1. Never
- 2. Very occasionally (less often than once a week)
- 3. Occasionally (at least once a week)
- 4. Daily

[SPORTFIN] That is the end of the section on Culture, Arts and Sport in Northern Ireland.

**[GIFTCARD1]** Have you ever received a gift card / voucher to spend in a shop? INSTRUCTION- THIS CAN INCLUDE:

- RESTAURANT VOUCHERS
- ONLINE VOUCHERS IE AMAZON VOUCHER
- HEALTH SPA VOUCHERS ETC

THIS DOES NOT INCLUDE:

- ANY LOYALTY / REWARD CARDS IE BOOTS POINTS / TESCO POINTS

1. Yes → [GIFTCARD2]

2. No → [SPORTFIN]

**[GIFTCARD2]** Have you ever had any difficulty spending a gift voucher, for example, if the voucher has expired or the company went out of business?

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

### **ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES AND ACTIONS TAKEN**

**[ENVIRON]** There is now considerable interest in the environment. We would like to know if you have any concerns about the environment in Northern Ireland.

[CONCERN] In general, how concerned or not are you personally about the environmental issues that impact on you? Are you....

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

- 1. very concerned
- 2. fairly concerned
- 3. not very concerned
- 4. or not at all concerned?

**[WORRY SHORT]** Which, if any, of the following environmental problems is <u>most</u> important to you . . RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Illegal dumping of Waste and Litter
- 2. Pollution of Air, Water and soil
- 3. Loss of plant and wildlife biodiversity
- 4. Climate change and Ozone layer depletion
- 5. Waste management (e.g. landfill, recycling, energy recovery)
- 6. Other? → [OWORRY]
- 7. None of these

[OWORRY] Please specify the other problem.

**[ACTION SHORT]** Which, if any, of the following positive environmental actions have you taken in the last 12 months . . .

**RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- Reduced consumption of household utilities (water, electricity, gas, energy)
- 2. Joined or donated to an environment group/organisation
- 3. Reused, Recycled and disposed of waste products appropriately (e.g Plastic bags, blue bin waste)"
- 4. Encouraged plant and wildlife biodiversity

- 5. Reduced food waste (better storage, portion planning, use leftovers etc)
- 6. Bought organic or sustainable products
- 7. Reduced the number of car journeys (more public transport, walking, cycling)
- 8. Other?  $\rightarrow$  [ACTMO]
- 9. None of these

**[ACTMO]** Please specify the other positive environmental action you have taken.

[GREENINTRO] The NI Executive has developed a Green Growth Strategy to help plan future actions to tackle the climate crisis and deliver sustainable prosperity.

**[GREEN]** Which of the following do you consider important in helping to tackle climate change in Northern Ireland..

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

**CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. Protecting the environment e.g. actions to protect and enhance natural areas
- 2. Ensure society can adapt to changes brought about by climate change
- 3. Grow the economy in an environmentally sustainable way
- 4. Reducing emissions
- 5. Other?  $\rightarrow$  [GREENoth]

**[GREENoth]** Please specify the other action.

**[BIODIV]** Which of the following do you consider to be the greatest threat to biodiversity and nature in Northern Ireland..

INTERVIEWER: BIODIVERSITY ENCOMPASSES THE WHOLE VARIETY OF LIFE ON EARTH. IT INCLUDES ALL SPECIES OF PLANTS, FUNGI & ANIMALS, I.E. THE ENTIRE NATURAL WORLD. RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Pollution (air, land and water)
- 2. Habitat loss by human activity (agriculture, development, industry)
- 3. Climate Change
- 4. Non-native invasive species
- 5. Other? (please specify)

**→**[BIODIVoth]

[BIODIVoth] Please specify other threat.

[BagPay25] When shopping, how much did you pay for the last carrier bag you bought? Was it... RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. 25p
- 2. 26p to 50p
- 3. 51p to £1
- 4. Over a £1?
- 5. DO NOT PROMPT Didn't buy a carrier bag

### WELLBEING/HOUSING SATISFACTION

[WELLintro] I would like to ask some questions about your feelings on aspects of your life. There are no right or wrong answers. For each of these questions I'd like you to give an answer on a scale of 0 to 10 where 0 is not at all and 10 is completely.

INTERVIEWER: IF ASKED, THIS REFERS TO HOW THE RESPONDENT FEELS UNDER CURRENT CIRCUMSTANCES

[WELLB1] Overall, how satisfied are you with your life nowadays?
INSTRUCTION: NOUGHT IS 'NOT AT ALL SATISFIED' AND 10 IS 'COMPLETELY SATISFIED

(0) Not at all (6)
(1) (7)
(2) (8)
(3) (9)
(4) (10) Completely

(5)

**[WELLB2]** Overall, to what extent do you feel that the things you do in your life are worthwhile? INSTRUCTION: NOUGHT IS 'NOT AT ALL WORTHWHILE' AND 10 IS 'COMPLETELY WORTHWHILE'

(0) Not at all	(6)
(1)	(7)
(2)	(8)
(3)	(9)
(4)	(10) Completely
(5)	

[WELLB3] Overall, how happy did you feel yesterday?

INSTRUCTION: NOUGHT IS 'NOT AT ALL HAPPY' AND 10 IS 'COMPLETELY HAPPY'

(0) Not at all	(6)
(1)	(7)
(2)	(8)
(3)	(9)
(4)	(10) Completely
(5)	

**[WELLB4]** On a scale where 0 is 'not at all anxious' and 10 is 'completely anxious', overall how anxious did you feel yesterday?

INSTRUCTION: NOUGHT IS 'NOT AT ALL ANXIOUS' AND 10 IS 'COMPLETELY ANXIOUS'

(0) Not at all	(6)
(1)	(7)
(2)	(8)
(3)	(9)
(4)	(10) Completely anxious
(5)	

### [SELFintro]

The next questions are about how you feel about your ability to cope with the challenges of daily life. I will read out some statements and I would like you to tell me which answer comes closest to how you feel about each statement.

INTERVIEWERS: IF ASKED, THIS REFERS TO HOW THE RESPONDENT FEELS UNDER CURRENT CIRCUMSTANCES

[SELF1] I can always manage to solve difficult problems if I try hard enough.

- 1. Strongly disagree
- 2. Disagree
- 3. Neither agree nor disagree
- 4. Agree
- 5. Strongly agree

[SELF2] I am confident that I could deal efficiently with unexpected events.

- 1. Strongly disagree
- 2. Disagree
- 3. Neither agree nor disagree
- 4. Agree
- 5. Strongly agree

[SELF3] I can remain calm when facing difficulties because I can rely on my coping abilities.

- 1. Strongly disagree
- 2. Disagree
- 3. Neither agree nor disagree
- 4. Agree
- 5. Strongly agree

**[SELF4]** When I am confronted with a problem, I can usually find several solutions.

- 1. Strongly disagree
- 2. Disagree
- 3. Neither agree nor disagree
- 4. Agree
- 5. Strongly agree

[SELF5] No matter what comes my way, I'm usually able to handle it.

- 1. Strongly disagree
- 2. Disagree
- 3. Neither agree nor disagree
- 4. Agree
- 5. Strongly agree

### [CONTROLintro]

The following statements concern your beliefs about things that happen in everyday life. Could you please indicate how much you agree or disagree with the following statements.

INTERVIEWERS: IF ASKED, THIS REFERS TO HOW THE RESPONDENT FEELS UNDER CURRENT CIRCUMSTANCES

### [CONTROL1] I am in control of my life.

- 1. Strongly disagree
- 2. Disagree
- 3. Neither agree nor disagree
- 4. Agree
- 5. Strongly agree

### **[CONTROL2]** If I take the right steps, I can avoid problems.

- 1. Strongly disagree
- 2. Disagree
- 3. Neither agree nor disagree
- 4. Agree
- 5. Strongly agree

### [CONTROL3] Most things that affect my life happen by accident.

- 1. Strongly disagree
- 2. Disagree
- 3. Neither agree nor disagree
- 4. Agree
- 5. Strongly agree

### [CONTROL4] If it's meant to be, I will be successful.

- 1. Strongly disagree
- 2. Disagree
- 3. Neither agree nor disagree
- 4. Agree
- 5. Strongly agree

### [CONTROL5] I can only do what my people in my life want me to do.

- 1. Strongly disagree
- 2. Disagree
- 3. Neither agree nor disagree
- 4. Agree
- 5. Strongly agree

### [LONOFT] How often do you feel lonely?

INTERVIEWER: IF ASKED, THIS REFERS TO HOW THE RESPONDENT CURRENTLY FEELS. RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Often or always
- 2. Some of the time
- 3. Occasionally
- 4. Hardly ever
- 5. Never?

## **[HOUSE2]** On the whole, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with this house/apartment/flat? RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Very satisfied
- 2. Fairly satisfied
- 3. Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- 4. Fairly dissatisfied
- 5. Very dissatisfied?

### **EDUCATION & UNCRC**

**[STILLSCH]** I would like to ask you about some questions relating to education. Are you a student in full time education?

INTERVIEWER: IS RESPONDENT STILL IN FULL TIME EDUCATION (I.E POST PRIMARY/COLLEGE/UNIVERSITY ETC)

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

**[HIQUAF]** Now thinking of any qualification you may have, could you please tell me what is the highest level of any qualification that you have obtained, or its nearest equivalent?

INTERVIEWER: WAIT FOR RESPONSE AND CHOOSE ANSWER FROM FOLLOWING LIST:

- 1. Higher degree and postgraduate qualifications
- 2. First degree (including B.Ed., BSc, BA)
- 3. Postgraduate Diplomas and Certificates (including PGCE)
- 4. Professional qualifications at degree level e.g. graduate member of professional institute, chartered accountant or surveyor
- 5. NVQ or SVQ level 4 or 5
- 6. Diplomas in higher education & other higher education qualifications
- 7. HNC, HND, Higher level BTEC
- 8. Teaching qualifications for schools or further education (below Degree level standard)
- 9. Nursing, or other medical qualifications not covered above (below Degree level standard)
- 10. RSA higher diploma
- 11. A level or equivalent
- 12. AS level
- 13. SCE Higher, Scottish Certificate Sixth Year Studies or equivalent
- 14. NVQ or SVQ level 3
- 15. GNVQ Advanced or GSVQ level 3
- 16. OND, ONC, BTEC National, SCOTVEC National Certificate
- 17. City & Guilds advanced craft, Part III (& other names)
- 18. RSA advanced diploma
- 19. NVQ or SVQ level 2
- 20. GNVQ intermediate or GSVQ level 2
- 21. RSA advanced Diploma
- 22. City & Guilds Craft or Part II (& other names)
- 23. BTEC, SCOTVEC first or general diploma
- 24. O level or GCSE grade A\*-C (CCEA)/ grade 9-4 (Ofqual regulated qualifications), SCE Standard or Ordinary grades 1-3)
- 25. NVQ or SVQ level 1
- 26. GNVQ Foundation level, GSVQ level 1
- 27. GCSE or O level below grade C (CCEA)/ below grade 4 (Ofqual regulated qualifications), SCE Standard or Ordinary below grade 3
- 28. CSE below grade 1
- 29. BTEC, SCOTVEC first or general certificate
- 30. SCOTVEC modules
- 31. RSA Stage I, II or III
- 32. City and Guilds part I
- 33. Junior certificate
- 34. Other vocational or professional or foreign qualifications
- 35. No qualifications

[UNRC] +	Have vou	heard of The	e United Nations	Convention on	n the Rights o	of the Child	. or the UNCRC?
----------	----------	--------------	------------------	---------------	----------------	--------------	-----------------

- 1. Yes
- 2. No
- **→** [UNRC3]

## [UNRC2] Where did you hear about it?

**CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. From my child
- 2. Directly through my child's school
- 3. NICCY (Northern Ireland Commissioner for Children and Young People)
- 4. Internet
- 5. Media
- 6. Other

[UNRC3] Do you think more should be done to make people aware of children's rights?

## **GENERAL HEALTH**

[INTROH] The next questions are about health.

[GENHEAL5] How is your health in general? Would you say it was... RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Very Good
- 2. Good
- 3. Fair
- 4. Bad
- 5. or Very Bad?

**[HLONGILL]** Do you have any physical or mental health conditions or illnesses lasting or expecting to last for 12 months or more?

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

 $\rightarrow$  [SMKATALL]

[REDACT] Does your condition(s) or illness(es) reduce your ability to carry out day to day activities?

- 1. Yes, a lot
- 2. Yes, a little
- 3. Not at all

## **SMOKING & DRINKING ALCOHOL**

[SMKATALL] Do you smoke cigarettes at all nowadays?	
<ol> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li> </ol>	→ [DRINKNOW]
[SMKREGUL] Have you ever smoked cigarettes regularly?	
1. Yes 2. No	
[DRINKNOW] Do you ever drink alcohol nowadays, including drinks	you brew or make at home?
1. Yes 2. No	→ [MOBILEP]
[TEETOTAL] Have you always been a non-drinker, or did you stop dri	inking for some reason?
<ol> <li>Always a non-drinker</li> <li>Used to drink but stopped</li> </ol>	
MOBILE PHONE OWNERS	НІР
[MOBILEP] May I just check, do you have a mobile phone? INTERVIEWER: RECORD YES IF RESPONDENT IS MAIN/ONLY USER DO NOT INCLUDE CORDLESS PHONES	
1. Yes 2. No	
INDIVIDUAL INTERNET ACCESS AI	ND USAGE
<b>[NETINDIV]</b> We have already asked you about your household's accelerate know if YOU have access to the internet (for example at work as well internet?	
1. Yes 2. No	→ [INTROWK]

# **[NETFREQ]** In general, how often do you use the internet? RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. At least once a day
- 2. Several times a week
- 3. Once a week
- 4. Several times a month
- 5. Once a month
- 6. Less than once a month
- 7. Rarely/never?

[NETUSE] In the past 12 months have you used the internet for any of the following.. RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

HELP BOX:

Option 1 = e.g. finding information on shop opening times cinema times, or the cost of clothes, groceries and car service.

- 1. Finding information about goods or services
- 2. Online purchases
- 3. Selling online
- 4. Internet banking
- 5. Used online learning resources
- 6. Seeking health-related information

- 7. Sending/receiving emails
- 8. Telephoning/video calls over the internet
- 9. Participating in social networks
- 10. Reading newspapers or news websites online
- 11. None?

**[NETSAFE]** In the past 12 months, did you practice any of the following while using the internet.. RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Setting privacy settings on accounts or social media
- 2. Identifying secure websites by looking for the padlock and https in the address bar
- 3. Recognising suspicious links in email, websites, social media messages and pop ups
- 4. None?

**[NETINFO]** In the past 12 months have you used the internet to look up information on any of the following? RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Obtain information on viewing health record
- Obtain health information (e.g. using NI Direct A-Z health conditions page)
- 3. View information on registering a birth, death or marriage
- 4. Find/search for a local public service
- 5. Look up careers and employment information/opportunities
- 6. Look up and/or comment on public consultation papers

- 7. Look up school/education information
- 8. Find out about benefits
- 9. Find out about pensions
- 10. Find out about taxes
- 11. Look up information on Courts and tribunal processes
- 12. Search land registry
- 13. Other please specify  $\rightarrow$  [NETINFOoth]
- 14. None of these?

[NETINFOoth] Please specify other information looked up

**[NETSERV]** In the past 12 months have you used the internet for any of these public services?" RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Register to vote
- 2. Apply for/renew passport
- 3. Apply for a benefit
- 4. Pay a fine (e.g. parking fine, driving offence fine etc.)
- 5. Book MOT test/re-test
- 6. Apply for/renew a driving licence
- 7. Renew car tax
- 8. Obtain certificates (e.g. birth, death, marriage, Covid certification etc.)
- Environmental and agriculture services (e.g. apply for a fishing rod licence, area based schemes)

- 10. Report a fault (e.g. pothole, electricity outage etc.)
- 11. Pay rates
- 12. Apply for Preschool/School place
- 13. Complete an income tax return
- 14. Apply for Access NI check
- 15. Book a GP appointment
- 16. Order repeat prescription
- 17. Apply for, renew or make changes to a taxi driver licence (TDL)
- 18. Apply for a firearms licence
- 19. Other please specify  $\rightarrow$  [NETSERVOTH]
- 20. None of these?

**[NETSERVOTH]** Please specify other public service internet use

#### **EMPLOYMENT**

[INTROWK] I am going to ask you some questions about employment now.

**[PAIDWORK]** Did you do any paid work in the 7 days ending Sunday the XX/XX/XXXX, either as an employee or as self-employed?

INTERVIEWER: IF ON GOVERNMENT TRAINING SCHEME CHOOSE "NO". IF THE RESPONDENT HAS BEEN FURLOUGHED THEY SHOULD ANSWER NO HERE AND CHOOSE THE FIRST OPTION AT THE NEXT QUESTION (AWAY FROM JOB/BUSINESS)

1. Yes  $\rightarrow$  [RELINT] or  $\rightarrow$  [ACCINTRO]

2. No

[ANYWORK] Did you...

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

1. have a job or business you were away from

 $\rightarrow$  [ACCINTRO]

- 2. were you waiting to take up a job already obtained
- 3. were you looking for work, or
- 4. were you intending to look for work, but were prevented by temporary sickness or injury?
- 5. were you on a government training scheme

 $\rightarrow$  [ACCINTRO]

6. none of these

**[UNPAIDO]** Did you do any unpaid work in the seven days ending Sunday the XX/XX/XXXX for any business that YOU own?

1. Yes  $\rightarrow$  [LAST4WK]

2. No

[UNPAIDR] ...or that a relative owns?

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

**[LAST4WK]** Thinking of the 4 weeks ending Sunday XX/XX/XXXX, were you looking for any kind of paid work or government training scheme at any time in those 4 weeks?

- 1. Yes
- 2. No  $\rightarrow$  [NREASON]

[**IFPLACE**] If a job or a place on a government scheme had been available in the week ending Sunday the XX/XX/XXXX, would you have been able to start in the next two weeks?

1. Yes  $\rightarrow$  [ACCINTRO]

2. No

[NREASON] What was the MAIN reason you did not seek any work in the last 4 weeks, or would not be able to start in the next 2 weeks?

- 1. Student
- 2. Looking after family/home
- 3. Temporarily sick or injured
- 4. Long-term sick or disabled
- 5. Retired from paid work
- 6. Other reason
- 7. Waiting to take up job already obtained

## **ACCIDENTS AND ILLNESS AT WORK**

[ACCINTRO] The next set of questions are about accidents and illnesses at work. IF [PAIDWORK] AND [UNPAIDO] AND [UNPAIDR] = NO)

**[LAST12m]** Earlier in the interview you told me that you did not do any paid / unpaid work in the last 7 days. Can I just check did you do any paid work in the last 12 months?

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

[ACCDNT] In the last 12 months have you ever had any accident resulting in injury at work or in the course of your work?

IF NEVER WORKED CODE NO

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

**[ILLWRK]** Have you ever suffered from any illness, disability or other physical or mental problem that was caused or made worse by your job or work?

IF NEVER WORKED CODE NO

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

#### **ROAD SAFETY**

[DDINT] I am now going to ask some questions on road safety and modes of travel

**[TRANSUSE]** Do you regularly use any of the following parts of our transport network/modes of travel: CODE ALL THAT APPLY RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Roads (as a driver)
- 2. Roads (as a passenger)
- 3. Roads (as a rider i.e. motorcyclist)
- 4. Footpaths (as a pedestrian)
- 5. Cyclists
- 6. Train
- 7. Bus
- 8. Horse rider/horse and carriage
- 9. Other eg. Wheeling (mobility scooter/wheelchair)/e-scooters /e-bikes
- 10. None >>[ROADSAFE]

**[TRANSRESP]** When using the transport network who do you consider yourself responsible for? CODE ALL THAT APPLY RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Yourself
- 2. Pedestrians
- 3. Other drivers
- 4. Cyclists
- 5. Motorcyclists
- 6. Horse-riders
- 7. Other (please specify) >>[TRANRESPO]

[TRANSRESPoth] please specify the other responsibility

[ROADSAFE] Which, if any, of the following road safety issues is most important to you?

- 1. Speeding
- 2. Careless driving
- 3. Drink-driving
- 4. Mobile phone use
- 5. Road conditions
- 6. Other (please specify)

>> [ROADSAFEoth]

7. None of these

[ROADSAFEoth] Please specify other safety issue

#### **GRADUATED DRIVING LICENCE**

**[GDL1a]** A new driver licensing scheme may be introduced in Northern Ireland in late 2021/early 2022called Graduated Driver Licensing or GDL. I would now like to ask you about the Graduated Driver Licensing Scheme. Could you tell me which of the following you are aware of...

**RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. A minimum learning period of six months
- 2. Evidence completion a Programme of Training before sitting the Practical Test
- 3. The option of lessons on motorways with an approved instructor
- 4. New Drivers under 24 not allowed more than one passenger between the ages of 14-20 between 11pm and 6am for the first six months.
- 5. The current 45mph speed restriction will be removed.
- 6. Must display plates, similar to the current R plate, for two years.
- 7. Lower alcohol limits for two years after passing the driving test.
- 8. None?

#### [GDL9]

Which of the following specific rules, if any, do you think newly qualified drivers will follow? RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Restriction on carrying young passengers at night
- 2. Display new driver plates for 2 years
- 3. Lower alcohol limit
- 4. None of the above

**[GDL10]** Which of the following options, if any, do you think will influence newly qualified drivers to follow the rules of the Graduated Driver Licensing Scheme?

**RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. The new driver (themselves)
- 2. Parents
- 3. Friends
- 4. (Fear of being caught by) Police
- 5. Education (What was learnt about this issue as part of the learning to drive process)
- 6. Advertising (Information campaigns, leaflets, adverts and so on, issued by the Government about this issue)
- 7. Other  $\rightarrow$  [GDL10oth]
- 8. None of the above

**[GDL10oth]** Please specify the other factor(s) you think will influence newly qualified drivers to follow the rules of the Graduated Driver Licensing Scheme.

#### **WALKING & CYCLING**

**[ACTIVE1]** Which of the following modes of transport would you consider to be 'active' travel'? RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Walking
- 2. Cycling
- 3. Bus
- 4. Train
- 5. Car/van
- 6. Motorcycle/Scooter/Moped
- 7. Taxi
- 8. Other

→ [ACTIVE1oth]

[ACTIVE1oth] Please specify

**[WALKINTRO]** The Department for Infrastructure will be working to develop proposals to provide well connected, safe, high quality walkways and cycleways, which will make walking a more attractive option for shorter journeys of around 2 miles / 3 kilometres and cycling for journeys of around 3 miles / 5 kilometres. This will have many benefits in terms of reducing pollution and harmful Greenhouse Gas emissions and contribute to better health and environmental outcomes.

**[WALK5]** Are you satisfied with the current situation for walking and walkers in your local area at present? By this I mean condition of footpaths, pedestrian crossings, street lighting etc.

- 1. Yes  $\rightarrow$  [WALK7]
- 2. No  $\rightarrow$  [WALK6]

## [WALK6]

Why are you not satisfied with the current situation for walking and walkers in your local area at present? RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Poor footpath conditions
- 2. Too much traffic
- 3. Not enough pedestrian crossings
- 4. Footpaths too cluttered, including cars parking on them
- 5. No direct links to where I want to get to
- 6. Other → [WALK6oth]

[WALK6oth] Please specify

[WALK7] Would you be likely to walk any journeys you have to make that are up to 2 miles / 3kms?

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

## [WALK8]

Which of the following options, if any, discourage you from walking short journeys of up to 2 miles / 3kms? RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Cars driving too quickly
- 2. Lack of footpaths
- 3. Too much traffic / have to cross busy roads
- 4. Clutter on the pavement, including cars parked on them
- 5. Worried about crime / personal safety / being attacked
- 6. Other → [WALK8oth]
- 7. I already walk short journeys of up to 2 miles or 3km (spontaneous)
- 8. No, nothing would put me off walking short journeys (spontaneous)

[WALK8oth] Please specify

[CYCLE5] Are you satisfied with the current situation for cycling and cyclists in your local area at present?

1. Yes  $\rightarrow$  [CYCLE7] 2. No  $\rightarrow$  [CYCLE6]

**[CYCLE6]** Why are you not satisfied with the current situation for cycling and cyclists in your local area at present?

**RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. No cycle lanes
- 2. Too much traffic
- 3. Personal safety I don't feel safe cycling
- 4. Cars parked in cycle lanes
- 5. No direct cycle links to where I want to get to
- 6. Other  $\rightarrow$  [CYCLE6oth]

[CYCLE6oth] Please specify

[CYCLE7] Would you be likely to cycle any journeys you have to make that are up to 3 miles / 5kms?

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

#### [CYCLE8]

Which of the following options, if any, discourage you from cycling journeys of up to 3 miles / 5kms? RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Don't own/ have access to a bicycle
- 2. Too much traffic / too dangerous
- 3. Bad weather
- 4. Lack of cycle lanes / poor cycling infrastructure
- 5. Poor road conditions, e.g. potholes
- 6. Other → [CYCLE8oth]
- 7. I already cycle short journeys of up to 3 miles or 5km (spontaneous)
- 8. No, nothing would put me off cycling short journeys (spontaneous)

[CYCLE8oth] Please specify

## WALKING/CYCLING TO/FROM WORK

#### IF EMPLOYMENT STATUS = EMPLOYED

**[WALK1]** I am now going to ask a few questions about how you get to work. Do you normally walk to or from work?

1. Yes, I normally walk to work AND from work
 2. Yes, I normally walk to work OR from work i.e. one way
 3. No
 4. Works from home
 5. Not currently in employment
 > [WALK2]
 > [CYCLE1]
 > [PUBTRAN1]

[WALK2] On average, how far, in miles do you walk to/from work in one direction?

[WALK3] And would that be walking all the way to work or just part of the way?

- 1. All the way
- 2. Part of the way

[WALK4] On average, how many days per week do you walk to/from work?

## [CYCLE1] Do you normally cycle to or from work?

1. Yes, I normally cycle to work AND from work
 2. Yes, I normally cycle to work OR from work i.e. one way
 3. No
 4. Works from home
 -> [CYCLE2]
 -> [PUBTRAN1]
 -> [PUBTRAN1]

[CYCLE2] On average, how far, in miles do you cycle to/from work in one direction?

[CYCLE3] And would that be cycling all the way to work or just part of the way?

- 1. All the way
- 2. Part of the way

[CYCLE4] On average, how many days per week do you cycle to/from work?

#### **PUBLIC TRANSPORT & JOURNEY PLANNING**

**[PUBTRAN1]** I am now going to ask a few questions about public transport use. How often do you travel on public transport?

INSTRUCTION: THIS WOULD BE TRAVEL ON NI RAIL, ULSTERBUS, METRO OR THE GLIDER

- 1. Every day
- 2. At least once a week
- 3. At least once every 2-3 weeks
- 4. At least once a month
- 5. Once every 2-3 months
- 6. Once every 6 months
- 7. Once a year
- 8. Less frequently
- 9. Never

→[TLINK5a]

[PUBTRAN2] Which public transport services do you use?

**CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. Glider
- 2. Metro
- 3. Ulsterbus
- 4. NI Rail
- 5. Other e.g. commercial operator

[PUBTRAN2oth] Please specify

[TLINK5a] In general, are you satisfied with public transport in your local area at present?

- 1. Yes
- 2. No

## [TLINK6b]

If TLINK5a = Yes

For which of these reasons are you satisfied with public transport in your local area?

If TLINK5a = No

May I ask, are there any reasons that you are satisfied with public transport in your local area?

**RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. Reliability of service
- 2. Quality of service
- 3. Frequency of service
- 4. Cost
- 5. Ease of use
- 6. Good access to information about services
- 7. Accessibility
- 8. None
- 9. Other -> [TLINK6both]

[TLINK6both] Please specify

#### [TLINK6]

If TLINK5a = No

For which of these reasons are you not satisfied with public transport in your local area?

If TLINK5a = Yes

May I ask, are there any reasons that you are not satisfied with public transport in your local area? RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. No service available
- 2. Frequency of service
- 3. Quality of service
- 4. Reliability of service
- 5. Cost
- 6. Not enough information about services
- 7. Poorly maintained vehicles / facilities
- 8. Accessibility
- 9. None
- 10. Other  $\rightarrow$  [TLINK6oth]

#### [TLINK6oth] Please specify

## Asked if PUBTRAN1 does not = 9

## [TLINK9]

Which of the following reasons encourages you to use public transport? CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. I find it convenient
- 2. It is a cheap way to travel
- 3. It is free
- 4. I enjoy it
- 5. Environmental reasons
- 6. It is the only form of travel that is accessible to me
- 7. It saves time (for example to avoid traffic jams)
- 8. I have no car
- 9. I cannot drive
- 10. I don't like driving
- 11. It is the most suitable travel for me
- 12. There are no suitable alternatives
- 13. Other -> [TLINK9oth]

#### [TLINK9oth] Please specify

#### [PTSAFE1]

**IF PUBTRAN1** <> 9 In terms of crime and personal safety, how safe do you feel when using public transport? Would you say you feel ...

**IF PUBTRAN1** = 9 In terms of crime and personal safety, how safe would you feel if you were to use public transport? Would you say you feel ...

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

- 1. Very safe
- 2. Fairly safe
- 3. A bit unsafe
- 4. Or very unsafe?

#### Ask if [PUBTRAN1] =<>9

**[PTSAFE2]** During the last 12 months since [date year ago], have you been the victim of a crime while using public transport?

1. Yes  $\rightarrow$  [PTSAFE3] 2. No  $\rightarrow$  [TLINK1]

[PTSAFE3] How many times has this happened? 1.....99

#### [TLINK1]

I am now going to ask a few questions about public transport journey planning. Which of the following methods that can be used to plan journeys by public transport are you aware of? RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Timetable hard copy
- 2. Timetable on Translink website
- 3. Translink call centre
- 4. Translink journey planner personal computer/laptop
- 5. Translink journey planner mobile app
- 6. Timetable on other operator's website
- 7. None  $\rightarrow$  [eCARintro]

## Asked if PUBTRAN1 does not = 9

#### [TLINK3]

Which of these methods do you use to plan your journeys by public transport?

**RUNNING PROMPT - CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. Timetable hard copy
- 2. Timetable on Translink website
- 3. Translink call centre
- 4. Translink journey planner personal computer/laptop
- 5. Translink journey planner mobile app
- 6. Other  $\rightarrow$  [TLINK3oth]
- 7. I don't use public transport → [eCARintro]

[TLINK3oth] Please specify the other method

Asked if selected more than one response to [TLINK3]

#### [TLINK4]

And which one of these methods do you use most often?

- 1. Timetable hard copy
- 2. Timetable on Translink website
- 3. Translink call centre
- 4. Translink journey planner personal computer/laptop
- 5. Translink journey planner mobile app
- 6. Timetable on other operator's website
- 7. Other  $\rightarrow$  [TLINK4oth]

[TLINK4oth] Please specify the other method

#### **eCAR OWNERSHIP**

**[eCARintro]** There are now many models of cars and vans which are fully electric or a combination of electric and petrol/diesel known as hybrids. The following questions are about the likelihood of you purchasing either a fully electric vehicle and your knowledge about electric vehicles and how they charge.

**[eCAR1]** Do you currently own or have access to a car or van? INTERVIEWER: INCLUDE ANY PROVIDED BY EMPLOYERS IF NORMALLY AVAILABLE FOR PRIVATE USE. EXCLUDE ANY USED SOLELY FOR THE CARRIAGE OF GOODS. RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. Yes, own/have access to a car/van which I can drive
- 2. Yes, own/have access to more than one car/van which I can drive
- 3. No, I have a driving licence but do not have access to car/van
- 4. No, I don't have a driving licence but I am currently learning to drive
- 5. No, I don't have a driving licence

 $\rightarrow$  [RELINT]

**[eCAR2]** How likely are you to buy an electric vehicle as your next vehicle? INTERVIEWER: IF THE RESPONDENT ALREADY OWNS AN ELECTRIC VEHICLE, THIS QUESTION REFERS TO THEIR NEXT POTENTIAL PURCHASE. RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. My next purchase will definitely be an electric vehicle
- 2. I would strongly consider an electric vehicle for my next purchase
- 3. I would be unlikely to consider an electric vehicle for my next purchase → [eCAR4]
- 4. I would not consider an electric vehicle for my next purchase → [eCAR4]

**[eCAR3]** If so, when do you think you would be likely to purchase an electric vehicle? Would it be... IF THE RESPONDENT ALREADY OWNS AN ELECTRIC VEHICLE, THIS QUESTION REFERS TO THEIR NEXT POTENTIAL PURCHASE

**RUNNING PROMPT** 

- 1. Within the next 2 years
- 2. Between 2 and 5 years
- 3. Between 5 and 10 years
- 4. or over 10 years?

**[eCAR4]** Please indicate which of the following options, if any, would encourage you to buy an electric vehicle.. RUNNING PROMPT

**CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. Environmentally friendly
- 2. A grant towards purchase of an electric vehicle.
- 3. Low overall running costs
- 4. Exempt from Vehicle Excise Duty (vehicle tax)
- 5. Availability and locations of the 337 public network charge points
- 6. Increased charging speed at public network charge points
- 7. Lower costs for electric compared to petrol/diesel fuel
- 8. Increasing vehicle range from one charge (from approx. 80 to 250 miles)
- 9. Grants to install a home charger
- 10. Grants per socket to install a workplace charger
- 11. Other

→ [eCAR4oth]

11. None?

[eCAR4oth] Please specify any other reasons

**[eCAR5]** Please indicate which of the following options, if any, would discourage you from buying an electric vehicle.

RUNNING PROMPT

**CODE ALL THAT APPLY** 

- 1. Need to recharge your vehicle
- 2. Vehicle range from one charge (now up to 250 miles)
- 3. Purchase price
- 4. The vehicle performance
- 5. Availability and locations of the 337 public network charge points
- 6. Difficulty installing a home charge point as I have no driveway
- 7. I don't know enough about electric vehicles to make the change from petrol/diesel
- 8. Other  $\rightarrow$  [eCAR5oth]
- 9. None?

[eCAR5oth] Please specify any other reasons

**[eCAR6]** In addition to the option of installing a home charge point when purchasing an electric vehicle, there are also 337 public charge points across Northern Ireland. From anywhere in NI, what do you think is the furthest you would ever have to travel to reach one of these public charge points..

RUNNING PROMPT

- 1. No more than 5 miles
- 2. No more than 10 miles
- 3. No more than 15 miles
- 4. No more than 25miles
- 5. No more than 50 miles
- 6. More than 50 miles?

## RELIGION, GENDER ID, NATIONAL IDENTITY, DEPENDANTS

[RELINT] Moving on to the next set of questions, may I ask...

## [RELQ2] What is your religion?

- 1. No Religion
- 2. Catholic
- 3. Presbyterian
- 4. Church of Ireland
- 5. Methodist
- 6. Baptist
- 7. Free Presbyterian
- 8. Brethren

- 9. Protestant not specified
- 10. Christian not specified
- 11. Buddhist
- 12. Hindu
- 13. Jewish
- 14. Muslim
- 15. Sikh
- 16. Any other religion, please describe → [RELQ2OT]

[RELQ2OT] Please describe your religion.

**[SIDtel]** I will now read out a list of terms people sometimes use to describe how they think of themselves.

- 1. Heterosexual or Straight,
- 2. Gay or Lesbian,
- 3. Bisexual,
- 4. Other.

As I read the list again, please say 'yes' when you hear the option that best describes how you think of yourself.

- 1. Heterosexual or Straight,
- 2. Gay or Lesbian,
- 3. Bisexual,
- 4. Other.

[GenderID] Is your gender the same as the sex you were registered at birth?

- 1. Yes
- 2. No
- 3. Prefer not to say

[NATIND] How would you describe your national identity?

INTERVIEWER: PLEASE CHOOSE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. British
- 2. Irish
- 3. Northern Irish
- 4. English
- 5. Scottish
- 6. Welsh
- 7. Other  $\rightarrow$  [NATINDO]

[NATINDO] Please specify?

1. Yes 2. No
[DEPEND2] Do you have responsibility for the care of a person with a disability?
1. Yes 2. No
[DEPEND3] Do you have responsibility for the care of a dependant elderly person?
1. Yes 2. No

[DEPEND1] Do you have responsibility for the care of a child?

## **BENEFITS**

**[INTROB]** I am now going to ask about any benefits and tax credits that you may receive. This information is used for statistical purposes only and is not shared with anyone else in any way which can be associated with you or your address.

**[BENE]** Could you tell me which, if any, of the benefits or tax credits are you at present receiving in your own right, that is, where you are the named recipient?

CODE ALL THAT APPLY

- 1. Universal credit
- 2. Housing benefit
- 3. Working tax credit
- 4. Child tax credit
- 5. Income support
- 6. Jobseekers allowance
- 7. Employment Support Allowance (ESA)
- 8. Carer's allowance
- 9. Pension credit / Retirement pension / Old person's pension
- 10. Disability benefits (including Personal Independence Payment PIP, Motability, DLA, incapacity benefit, attendance allowance, industrial injuries disablement benefit, severe disablement allowance)
- 11. Child benefit
- 12. Other

 $\rightarrow$  [BENEOTH]

13. None of these

[BENEOTH] Please specify the other benefit/tax credit.

#### **END OF INTERVIEW**

**[RecallP2]** We may in the future invite you to take part in other surveys. If we do, we will write, text or email to inform you and you will be free to decide at the time whether you want to take part.

- 1. Objection
- 2. No objection

**[TelNo1]** A few interviews on any survey are checked by my Office to make sure that people are satisfied with the way the interview was carried out. In case my office needs to contact you, it would be helpful if we could have your telephone number. Your phone number will not be passed to anyone outside of the Northern Ireland Statistics and Research Agency without your consent.

INSTRUCTION: AS YOU WILL ALREADY KNOW THIS INFORMATION PLEASE INPUT YOURSELF.

- 1. Yes
- 2. No access to telephone
- 3. Number refused

#### [TelNumb]

INSTRUCTION: PLEASE RECORD TELEPHONE NUMBER INCLUDING ANY AREA CODE. AS YOU WILL ALREADY KNOW THIS INFORMATION PLEASE INPUT YOURSELF

[TelNAME] And can I check, who should we ask for?

INSTRUCTION: AS YOU WILL ALREADY KNOW THIS INFORMATION PLEASE INPUT YOURSELF.

If Recallp2=2

[Email1] And what is your email address?

INSTRUCTION: PLEASE READ BACK TO RESPONDENT TO MAKE SURE NO MISTAKES HAVE BEEN MADE

## [Thankr]

INSTRUCTION: Thank the respondent for their help"

INSTRUCTION: THIS IS THE END OF THE INDIVIDUAL INTERVIEW. CLICK ON THE NAME TAB TO INTERVIEW ANOTHER PERSON OR IF YOU HAVE FINSIHED WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CLICK ON THE 'MAIN' TAB AND PRESS END TO COMPLETE THE HOUTCOME CODE.